
SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES
3.00 pm TUESDAY, 18TH APRIL, 2017

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 
the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 

possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing 
Partnership Board Annual Report 2016-17 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services

1 - 8

4. Performance Report - Corporate Plan - Priority 
Area 3 Meeting the needs of vulnerable children 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services

9 - 20

5. Performance Report - Corporate Plan - Priority 
Area 4 Active Lifestyles 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services

21 - 36

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillor:  W R Smith (Chair)

Councillors: D Davies, R Braithwaite, A Jones, T Lewis, 
B E Mansbridge and J McCarthy

Co-optees: B Lewis

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

CWM TAF SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING 
PARTNERSHIP BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to share with Scrutiny Committee the Annual Report for 
2016/17 for the Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 It is recommended that the Scrutiny Committee note and debate the content of the 
Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board (CTSSWB P Board) 
Annual Plans for 2016/17.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 The CTSSWB P Board are required to produce an Annual Report. This is the first 
Annual Report for the Partnership Board and sets out the progress that has been 
made by the Partnership in its first year.

3.2 The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 came into effect on 6th April 
2016. The Act requires that Local Authorities and their Local Health Board establish 
a Regional Partnership Board to manage and develop services to secure strategic 
planning and partnership working between Local Authorities and Local Health 
Boards and to ensure effective services, care and support are in place to best meet 
the needs of their population. 

3.3 The objectives of the Regional Partnership Boards are to ensure the partnership 
bodies work effectively together to:

Date Written 5th April 2017
Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones
Service Area Social Services
Committee Date 18th April 2017

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 Respond to the population assessment carried out in accordance with 
section 14 of the Act.

 Implement the plans for each of the Local Authority areas covered by the 
Board which Local Authorities and Local Health Boards are each required 
to prepare and publish.

 Ensure the partnership bodies provide sufficient resources for the 
Partnership arrangements.

 Promote the establishment of pooled funds where appropriate.

3.4 The Regional Partnership Boards are required to prioritise the integration of services 
for:

 Older people with complex needs and long term conditions, including 
dementia

 People with learning disabilities
 Carers, including young carers
 Integrated Family Support Services
 Children with complex needs due to disability or illness

3.5 In addition, and more specifically the Partnership Board is expected to ensure that 
pooled funds are established and managed in relation to care home accommodation 
to take effect from 6 April 2018, and to ensure the effective sharing of information to 
improve the delivery of services, care and support, underpinned by use of 
technology and common systems.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 In February and March 2016 the Members of the Cwm Taf Social Services and 
Wellbeing Partnership participated in two facilitated workshops to establish a set of 
principles to inform their work, clarify their role, purpose and local objectives. These 
were formally endorsed though a Memorandum of Understanding that each partner 
organisation has supported through their formal governance arrangements.

4.2 The principles that inform the work of the Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing 
Partnership are:

 We will promote and support effective communication across the 
partnership

 We will make sure the public and particularly users of our services and 
their carers are able to influence the work of the partnership 

 We will focus on what matters to the people and communities of Cwm Taf 
 We will promote and develop solutions towards preventing problems 

occurring or getting worse for people in Cwm Taf 
 We will promote and support collaboration and integration 
 We will make sure that we strike a balance between short term needs and 

longer term goals  

4.3 The key roles for the Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership are to: 

 Ensure that there is an agreed shared vision and a clear direction of travel 
for service development and integration of health, care and wellbeing  

Page 2



 Ensure that there are shared plans and strategies in place (supported by 
appropriate business cases) for delivering on the vision 

 Ensure that the strategic plans are evaluated and reviewed against agreed 
and understood outcomes and performance indicators 

 Lead a strategic approach to communicating and publicising the direction 
of travel and the progress made 

 Ensure that the principles of the Board are upheld 
 Maintain an effective overview of the resources allocated by the 

Partnership Board
 Report to the Public Services Board on progress, key issues and 

exceptions, escalating any barriers to progress within the Partnership 
Board for resolution 

 Ensure that an annual report on progress is prepared and delivered as 
required to the Welsh Government

4.4 The Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership's programme of scrutiny 
and overview focuses on the following objectives:

 That the population assessment required by section 14 of the Act is 
undertaken and effective

 That the outcome of the population assessment is taken into account 
when creating, publishing and delivering strategic plans 

 That the partnership bodies provide sufficient resources for the partnership 
arrangements to be effective

 That pooled funds are established where appropriate
 That information is shared and used effectively to improve the delivery of 

services, care and support, underpinned by technology and common 
systems 

 That there is progress on the integration of services for the following: 
 Older people with complex needs and long term conditions, 

including dementia; 
 People with learning disabilities;
 Carers, including young carers;
 Integrated Family Support Services 
 Children with complex needs due to disability or illness

 To ensure that pooled funds are established and managed in relation to 
care home accommodation to take effect from 6 April 2018

 To ensure that pooled funds are established and managed in relation to 
the Integrated Family Support Service to take effect from 6 April 2016

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 The first year of the Partnership Board has been productive and we have managed 
to make good and steady progress against the objectives that we set this time last 
year. 

5.2 The first population assessment has been completed for the Cwm Taf region and 
has been endorsed by the Partnership Board, the Cwm Taf University Health Board 
and both RCT and MT Councils. To ensure it was effective the same process was 
put in place for the Well-being assessment. 

Page 3



5.3 Seven areas were identified under the Population Needs Assessment for the SS 
&WB Act: Carers; Children & Young People; Learning Disability; Mental Health; 
Older People; Physical Disability and Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence. Also cross cutting and common issues were identified across these 
groups as not all people identified with one group and have a range of needs.

5.4 The Population Assessment has already been used to inform the development of the 
Strategic Statements. The assessments will also inform the development and 
implantation of the Cwm Taf Local Area Plan, which is due for publication in May 
2018.

5.5 All the organisations represented at the Partnership Board are committed to working 
together across the region, and this is demonstrated by the membership, attendance 
and participation across all groups and activities with the programme.

5.6 Resources have been made available to support the work of the Board via the 
Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) and the Delivering Transformation Grant (DFG).

5.7 Cwm Taf has a positive history of joint working and pooling resources, e.g. Cwm Taf 
Youth Offending Service, Cwm Taf Integrated Equipment Service, Cwm Taf 
Integrated Family Support Team.

5.8 With regards to technology and common systems within Cwm Taf, we have invested 
in DEWIS Cymru and WCCIS (The Welsh Community Care Information System). 
Merthyr Tydfil are due to go live in June 2017. There has been the development of 
the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as a single point of contact for all 
professionals to report safeguarding concerns. We have also developed an 
Information, Advice and Assistance Services (IAA) in response to the SS and WB 
Act requirements.

5.9 The Cwm Taf Integrated Family Support Team was set up under a legal agreement 
with a pooled fund on April 1st 2016. An Operational Management Board oversees 
the performance of the team throughout the year but in addition an Annual Report is 
presented to the Partnership Board and Welsh Government.

5.10 Together we have adopted a common vision for integrated health and social care 
services for older people. The Cwm Taf joint Commissioning Statement for Older 
People’s Services have been endorsed by the partnership. As a result we have 
developed the Stay Well @ Home Service and we have seen the introduction of 5 
Community Co-ordinators across Cwm Taf.

5.11 The Cwm Taf regional approach aims to support people with learning disabilities and 
their families to experience the outcomes outlined nationally in the Social Services 
and Well-being (Wales) Act.

5.12 For 2016/17 the Partnership in Cwm Taf has developed and endorsed a Carers 
Strategy (2016-2019) to direct the regional work programme.

5.13 In respect of carers the partnership has :
 Developed a network of Carers Champions to raise awareness and profile 

the role of Carers. There are already over 300 Champions in settings 
Page 4



across health, social care, education, housing, leisure, Job Centres and in 
the voluntary sector

 Developed an e learning tool for training staff across all sectors to raise 
awareness and knowledge of Carers issues

 Undertaken training for students (nursing, social care and teacher) at the 
University of South Wales, Coleg y Cymoedd and Merthyr Tydfil College 
so our future workforce is Carer aware.

 Developed a Teacher’s Guide
 Developed a range of digital Carer Stories for use in raising awareness 

and training

5.14 In addition to the development of the pooled fund for the Integrated Family Support 
Team and the work outlined above for people with Learning Disabilities (that includes 
children) the Partnership has been working to confirm a commitment to work 
together over the next ten years to improve how it promotes the health, achievement, 
wellbeing and safety for children, young people and families in the region.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 Priorities have been set for the partnership under key themes. We want to continue 
the excellent working relationship across Cwm Taf and ensure that we are effectively 
using the information from the population needs assessments to meet the needs of 
the people living in the area.

6.2 We recognise that we have to work together if we are able to transform our services 
and meet the future challenges.

6.3 The focus this year has been to undertake the preparatory work required to establish 
the strategic frameworks to guide the delivery of service over the next five to ten 
years.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 The Population assessment has been published and now we need to focus on the 
Well-Being Plan for April 2018.

7.2 The Stay Well @ Home Service was launched on the 3rd April 2017. This service 
needs to be closely evaluated and reviewed.

7.3 Whilst the Partnership has focussed effort on establishing its common vision and 
statement of strategic intent for Children, Young People and Adults with Learning 
Disabilities, during this year there has also been progress in developing a specific 
service to support people with autism, their families and carers. Implementation of 
this service is planned to commence towards the end of March with the team fully 
operational in April 2017.

7.4 In respect of carers, the partnership intend to:
 Continue with the recruitment and support of more Carers Champions 

across all organisationsPage 5



 Annual Carers Champions conference to share information and best 
practice across the network 

 Continued training for staff in the statutory and voluntary sectors to raise 
their awareness of Carers and how to support them, including the new 
training modules being developed nationally in relation to the SSWB Act 

 Continued training of students (nursing, social care and teacher’s) so our 
future workforce are Carer Aware

 Involvement of Carers in the training staff, either in person or through the 
use of Carer stories, DVDs etc 

 Roll out of Cwm Taf Award scheme for Carers Champions in GP Practices
 Roll out of Schools Award to increase Carer awareness in school’s 

amongst teacher’s and pupil’s

7.5 The work programme is still under development but will, once completed, set out 
how we will work in partnership with children, young people and families living in our 
region, to help them secure the best possible start in life and how we will work 
together to address Welsh Government legislation and find opportunities to pool our 
resources to ensure high quality, accessible and integrated services that help 
children, young people and families quickly and effectively. The programme is being 
produced by the partners in Cwm Taf in response to the population analysis, and 
consultation with the public and professionals in 2016 and 2017. The product is 
intended to remain relevant until 2022 and will, following formal endorsement by the 
Partnership Board direct activities and services for children young people and 
families across the region. 

7.6 To ensure that pooled funds are established and managed in relation to care home 
accommodation to take effect from 6 April 2018. This objective is due for action from 
2018. However during 2016/17 the Partnership has overseen the following 
preparatory project work: 

 The development of a common Contract and Service specification for Care 
homes across the region which is currently under discussion with 
providers 

 The development of a Market Position Statement for the Care Home 
market due for completion in the spring

 Participation in the National Commissioning Board Market Analysis for 
care homes, which assisted in developing the evidence base for the 
Market Position Statement 

 Facilitation of a Regional workshop (with support from the National 
Commissioning Board) to initiate consideration to the options available for 
the Pooled fund arrangement

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 The content of this report has strategic congruence with the Social Service Strategy 
in the following ways:

 Children and Adults are safe and protected from neglect and abuse

 Social Services practice is compliant with the Social Services and Well-
Being (Wales) Act

Page 6



 Improve Performance

 Improve partnership working

 Promote Early Intervention and Prevention

LISA CURTIS-JONES, 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)

COUNCILLOR LINDA MATTHEWS
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 

SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Annual Report 2016-17 April 2017 Unit 5
Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN

Main Tel:  01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Performance Report - Corporate Plan
Priority Area 3 Meeting the needs of vulnerable children

1. SUMMARY OF THE REPORT
1.1. In Merthyr Tydfil (2013), outcomes were unsatisfactory with a comparably high 

proportion of the child population in need, on the child protection register or children 
looked after by the local authority.

1.2. In Merthyr Tydfil (March 2016), the current position of outcomes for the community for 
children and young people is adequate because performance shows improvement  
with signs  that demand remains high for protection and looked after interventions.

1.3. Our ambition is for outcomes for children to be good by 2018.  In order to achieve good 
we need to have effective early intervention and preventative services that reduce the 
number of children requiring support and prevent escalation when engaged in services 
e.g. children in need of care and support, looked after children, and children on the 
child protection register.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

Date Written 20 March 2017

Report Author Annabel Lloyd

Service Performance

Committee Date 18 April 2017

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/


2.1. The judgements and evaluations are noted and debated

3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

National Context
3.1. All local authorities in Wales are required to secure continuous improvement in the 

exercise of their functions by identifying their own priorities for improvement.  This legal 
requirement is set out in the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009.

Council Vision
3.2. To strengthen Merthyr Tydfil’s position as the regional centre for the Heads of the 

Valleys, and be a place to be proud of where:

a) People learn and develop skills to fulfil their ambitions
b) People live, work, have a safe, healthy and fulfilled life
c) People visit, enjoy and return

3.3. Our current approach to delivery of Children's Social Services directly and indirectly 
contributes to the priority outcomes set in both the Single Integrated Plan (SIP) and the 
Corporate Plan (CP).  The current strategy is to deliver those but our approach is 
evolving to align with the expectations of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 
and the Wellbeing of Future Generation Act 2015.

Corporate Plan - Meeting the needs of vulnerable children
3.4. The local authority improvement objectives for 2013 to 2017 include the priority areas 

Promoting Independence, Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and Active 
Lifestyles.  These priority areas seek to prioritise effort within the wide range of activities 
to have a strategic focus on early intervention and prevention to achieve the outcomes:

a) People in Merthyr Tydfil will be able to lead independent and fulfilled lives
b) Vulnerable children in Merthyr Tydfil live healthy, safe and fulfilled lives
c) People in Merthyr Tydfil are physically active and as a result have improved health

3.5. This report will focus on the outcome "vulnerable children in Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled lives"

4. WHERE WE WERE

Meeting the needs of vulnerable children
4.1. In Merthyr Tydfil, outcomes were unsatisfactory in 2013 with a comparably high 

proportion of the child population in need, on the child protection register or children 
looked after by the local authority.

Page 10



4.2. Local delivery of the early intervention and prevention programme (Flying Start) has 
shown positive results in its first year.

Key Indicators
March 2013
Merthyr Tydfil

March 2013
Wales

Children in need per 10,000 child population 460 316
Children on the CPR per 10,000 child population 80.0 38.0
Children looked after per 10,000 child population 144 91.6
Children fully immunised at their fourth birthday 78.9 % 78.1 %
Children who reach/exceed their SOG milestones 58.9 % 55.0 %
Children looked after with three or more placements 8.33 % 9.54 %

5. WHERE WE WANT TO BE

Meeting the needs of vulnerable children
5.1. By 2018, we want to have effective early intervention and preventative services that 

help reduce the levels of children in need of care and support, looked after children, and 
children on the child protection register, which are currently among the highest in 
Wales.

Key Indicators
March 2017
Ambition

March 2018
Ambition

Children in need per 10,000 child population 370 350
Children on the CPR per 10,000 child population 78 72
Children looked after per 10,000 child population 110 100
Children fully immunised at their fourth birthday 88.4 % 89.0 %
Children who reach/exceed their SOG milestones 55.0 % 58.0 %
Children looked after with three or more placements 8.80 % 8.00 %

6. WHERE WE ARE NOW

Reference to Measures
(Full details in Appendix I)

Meeting the needs of vulnerable children
6.1. In Merthyr Tydfil (March 2016), the current position of outcomes for the community for 

children and young people is adequate because performance shows improvement with 
signs that demand remains high for protection and looked after interventions.

Key Indicators
2016
Merthyr Tydfil

2016
Wales

Page 11



Children in need per 10,000 child population 410 rank 20 300
Children on the CPR per 10,000 child population 82.4 rank 20 48.7
Children looked after per 10,000 child population 113 rank 17 90.2
Children fully immunised at their fourth birthday 87.1 % rank 09 83.2 %
Children who reach/exceed their SOG milestones 43.1 % rank 16 51.1 %
Children looked after with three or more placements 13.4 % rank XX

Recent updates to:
 Children in need per 10,000 child population
 Children looked after with three or more placements

7. HOW DID WE GET HERE

Reference to Initiatives
(Full details in Appendix II)

7.1. Further develop and expand Enhanced Children in Need (ECIN) Service
7.2. Continue the work of the Looked After Children Prevention Strategy
7.3. Improve practitioner tools to make judgements for children at risk of abuse or neglect
7.4. Deliver an effective Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Service

Initiatives completed
7.5. n/a

Lessons learnt
7.6. n/a

8. WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

New initiatives
8.1. Flying Start to implement the speech and language support and evaluate its impact on 

the wider outcomes for children.

9. THE WELLBEING DUTY (SS&WB ACT AND WFG ACT)
9.1. The Social Services and Wellbeing (SSWB) Act became law in Wales on 01 May 2014, 

which changes the way we assess people's needs and the way we deliver services to 
those people, where they will have a stronger voice to decide what care and support 
they receive.

9.2. The Wellbeing of Future Generations (WFG) Act became law in Wales on 29 April 2015, 
which is about improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of 
Wales.

Page 12



Preparation for the Wellbeing Duty
9.3. Social Services have a regional work programme to implement the changes brought 

about by the SSWB Act.  In addition, Social Services are contributing to the production 
of the wellbeing assessment for the WFG Act.  The wellbeing assessment will inform 
the new strategy for Improving Wellbeing, which will centre on the seven wellbeing 
goals and the five ways of working.

LISA CURTIS-JONES
CHIEF OFFICER: IMPROVING WELLBEING

COUNCILLOR LINDA MATTHEWS
PORTFOLIO: SOCIAL SERVICES

EVIDENCE
Title of Document(s)

 Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Document 2015/16
 Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Document 2016/17
 Annual Report on Social Services 2015/16
 Service Area Performance Report Cards 2015/16
 Scrutiny – 28 June 2016 – Performance Report
 Scrutiny – 20 September 2016 – Performance Report
 Quarterly Performance Data Return (April – September 2016)

Does the report contain any issues that may 
affect the Council’s Constitution? NO

Page 13

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=2519&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=2520&Ver=4&LLL=0


Appendix I Data

TITLE The rate of children in need per 10,000 population aged under 18

DATA Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 2015

MT 440 460 493 428 410 400 20

Wales 320 316 320 307 300

Difference (120) (144) (173) (121) (110)

TITLE The rate of children on the child protection register per 10,000 population aged 
under 18

DATA Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

MT 92 107 84 82 78 20

Wales 47 50 47 49

Difference (45) (57) (37) (33) ()

TITLE The rate of children looked after per 10,000 population aged under 18

DATA Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 2015

MT (March) 153 145 140 131 113 120 17

Wales (March) 90 91 91 89 90

Difference (63) (54) (49) (42) (23)

TITLE The percentage of children in Flying Start areas that are fully immunised at their 
fourth birthday

DATA Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT 85.0 83.2 91.0 87.1 88.4 9

Wales 76.3 78.1 82.7 83.2

Difference (8.7) (5.1) (7.3) (3.9) ()

Page 14

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-Care/Social-Services/Childrens-Services/Children-in-Need/childreninneedper10000population-by-localauthority-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-Care/Social-Services/Childrens-Services/Service-Provision/childrenonchildprotectionregisterat31marchper10000populationagedunder18-by-localauthority-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-Care/Social-Services/Childrens-Services/Children-Looked-After/childrenlookedafterat31marchper10000population-localauthority-year
http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/flying-start/?lang=en


TITLE The percentage of children in Flying Start at age 35 to 37 months who reach or 
exceed their SOG milestones

DATA Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

MT 58.9 54.8 56.7 43.1 55.0 16

Wales 55.0 54.7 52.7 51.1

Difference (3.9) (0.1) (4.0) (-8.0) ()

TITLE The percentage of children looked after on 31 March who have had three or 
more placements during the year

DATA Quarterly Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2015/16 Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

MT 9.22 7.46 9.93 13.4 8.80

Wales 9.78

(-0.56) 10 / 134 14 / 141 19/142

Page 15

http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/flying-start/?lang=en
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/National-Strategic-Indicators-of-Local-Authority-Perfomance


Appendix II Projects

PROJECTS Apr
2014

Jul
2014

Oct
2014

Jan
2015

Apr
2015

Jul
2015

Oct
2015

Jan
2016

Apr
2016

Jul
2016

Oct
2016

Jan
2017

Enhanced CIN 7.6 7.1

LAC Strategy 7.7 7.2

Practitioner Tools 7.3

IAA Service 7.4

Page 16



Back

PROJECT (A) Further develop enhanced Children in Need services Merthyr Tydfil 
Family Centre

PROJECT MANAGER Head of Children's Services

DESCRIPTION The purpose of these services are to work with families at an earlier 
stage on a voluntary basis, in order to bring about changes in parenting 
skills and help families put in place strategies to prevent problems 
escalating and entering the child protection or Looked After Children 
arenas.  This will involve:
 Close work with the family and other agencies to develop individual 

action plans for the family and professionals with clear outcome 
goals, and

 Outline what needs to happen to achieve the outcomes, with shared 
responsibility between the family and key professionals and how we 
will measure progress with timescales.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) A reduction in the numbers of children escalating to child protection of 
looked after children status.

START DATE 01 April 2015

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

The newly named Early Intervention Team is fully staffed and 
operational.  We have developed a set of measures for monitoring 
progress and changes.  Social Services Scrutiny Committee will receive 
update reports.

Next steps:
 Monitor the impact and outcomes achieved by the service to ensure 

that we work to targets and address any challenges at an early 
point.

Page 17



Back

PROJECT (B) Continue the work of the Looked After Children Prevention Strategy

PROJECT MANAGER Head of Children's Social Services

DESCRIPTION The expansion of preventative services at Merthyr Tydfil Family Centre 
will enable closer work with the Early Intervention Team and 
preventative work with families.  This strategy will look at prevention 
work and map opportunities to reduce (safely) the numbers of Looked 
After Children in Merthyr Tydfil.  This will involve work with children and 
parent, individual direct work, and outreach work within the family home 
to provide help and support to families at the earliest opportunity.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) A reduction in the numbers of looked after children in Merthyr Tydfil

START DATE 01 April 2015

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

Despite a developing trend of progress, during summer and autumn we 
saw an increased number of new entries to care for safeguarding 
reasons in one much which has interrupted the downward trend.  We 
expect to be back on track in quarter 4.

It is evident that we need to carry out further work to understand in 
detail the rationale for the plateau and decide what further action is 
necessary.  This project will continue into 2017/18.

Page 18



Back

PROJECT (C) Improve practitioner tools for making sound judgements when children 
are at risk of abuse or neglect

PROJECT MANAGER Head of Children's Services

DESCRIPTION In order to support practitioners make sound judgements when making 
decisions about safeguarding children and young people, we will 
research the risk assessment and management tools that are available 
across the country and develop a 'best fit for practice' tool and guidance 
for Merthyr Tydfil.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S)

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

This project has come to fruition with draft practice guidance available 
for comment and dates in the diary for training staff.

Page 19



Back

PROJECT (D) Deliver an effective Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Service 
for Children and their Families

PROJECT MANAGER Head of Children's Services

DESCRIPTION The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act requires us to provide 
an Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) service.  The IAA service 
will be a preventative and early intervention service, which will help 
manage demand by preventing need and risk from escalating to 
specialist services.  In order to deliver an effective IAA service, we will 
improve the quality and accessibility of information for children and their 
families about services that are available to ensure they have the right 
help at the right time.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) High proportions of children who report that they had the right 
information or advice when they needed it

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

The IAA task and finish group has developed a service with 
performance information showing some promising results.  During 
2017/18 we will review and further develop this provision, looking at 
evidence of what works and ensuring that IAA is well positioned to 
achieve success in preventing escalation of risk and need and 
promoting opportunities for young people and families to seek early 
resolution of emerging difficulties related to well-being.

Page 20



Civic Centre, Castle Street
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN

Main Tel:  01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Performance Report – Corporate Plan
Priority Area 4 Active Lifestyles

1. SUMMARY OF THE REPORT
1.1. In Merthyr Tydfil (2013), outcomes were unsatisfactory.  There were high participation 

rates in physical activity and free swim sessions; however, Merthyr Tydfil had the 
highest proportion of adult who reported being overweight or obese and low 
proportions of children and adults who are "Hooked on Sport".

1.2. In Merthyr Tydfil based on the latest published data, outcomes are now (March 2017) 
adequate because there has been an overall improvement in people who are hooked 
on sport.  There was significant improvement to the children (boys and girls) who are 
hooked on sport and a slight improvement to the adults who are hooked on sport; 
however, there was a significant decline in the proportion of women who are hooked 
on sport.

1.3. Our ambition is for outcomes for the health and wellbeing of residents in Merthyr Tydfil 
to be good by 2017.  In order to achieve good we need to sustain levels of exercise 
and physical activity to be in the top half of local authorities in Wales.

Date Written 20 March 2017

Report Author Ewan McWilliams

Service Performance

Committee Date 18 April 2017

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/


2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.1. The judgements and evaluations are noted and debated

3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

National Context
3.1. All local authorities in Wales are required to secure continuous improvement in the 

exercise of their functions by identifying their own priorities for improvement.  This legal 
requirement is set out in the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009.

Council Vision
3.2. To strengthen Merthyr Tydfil’s position as the regional centre for the Heads of the 

Valleys, and be a place to be proud of where:

a) People learn and develop skills to fulfil their ambitions
b) People live, work, have a safe, healthy and fulfilled life
c) People visit, enjoy and return

Corporate Plan - Active lifestyles
3.3. The local authority improvement objectives for 2013 to 2017 include the priority areas 

Promoting Independence, Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and Active 
Lifestyles.  These priority areas seek to prioritise effort within the wide range of activities 
to have a strategic focus on early intervention and prevention to achieve the outcomes:

a) People in Merthyr Tydfil will be able to lead independent and fulfilled lives
b) Vulnerable children in Merthyr Tydfil live healthy, safe and fulfilled lives
c) People in Merthyr Tydfil are physically active and as a result have improved 

health

3.4. There are three principal areas considered within the outcome "people in Merthyr 
Tydfil are physically active and as a result have improved health"

a) develop and maintain a skilled and passionate workforce
b) development of community sport, and
c) bridging the equalities gap to include disability, women and girls opportunities

4. WHERE WE WERE

Page 22



Active lifestyles
4.1. In Merthyr Tydfil (2013), outcomes were unsatisfactory.  There was high participation 

in free swimming and physical activity at local authority leisure centres and sports 
facilities; however, Merthyr Tydfil had the highest proportion of adults who reported 
being overweight or obese and low proportions of children and adults who were 
"Hooked on Sport".

4.2. There was an imbalance between boys and girls who are "Hooked on Sport" and men 
and women who are "Hooked on Sport" with lower proportions of girls and women who 
are "Hooked on Sport".

4.3. The Welsh Government announced its ambition to have every child (age eleven) able to 
swim by 2018 in Wales.  Local delivery of the "learn to swim" initiative in Merthyr Tydfil 
was able to achieve 72 percent of children able to swim by age eleven (rank 11 in 
Wales).

4.4. The provision of opportunity for free swimming in Merthyr Tydfil was high, which was 
able to achieve high participation rates, especially by girls and women.  Both groups 
saw higher participation than boys and men.

Key Indicators
March 2013
Merthyr Tydfil

March 2013
Wales

Children who are Hooked on Sport 32.5 % rank 22 40.1 %
- Boys 37.1 % rank 22 44.0 %
- Girls 27.7 % rank 22 36.0 %

Adults who are Hooked on Sport1 35.9 % rank 17 38.8 %
- Men 44.6 % rank 12 45.6 %
- Women 27.7 % rank 18 32.3 %

Children (year 11) who can swim 72.0 % rank 11 74.0 %
Adults reported as being overweight or obese 65.2 % rank 22 50.0 %
Visits to leisure centres per 1000 population 9,816 rank 7 8,856
Free public swims by those aged 60 and over 1,249 rank 2 886

- Male 1,132 rank 3 1,013
- Female 1,349 rank 2 778

Free public swims by those aged 16 and under 1,219 rank 2 709
- Boys 1,162 rank 2 697
- Girls 1,280 rank 2 723

5. WHERE WE WANT TO BE
1 The adults who are "Hooked on Sport" replace the adults who exercise 5 times per week measure as a national 
indicator (2012 data).

Page 23



Active lifestyles
5.1. By 2017, we want sustainable levels of exercise and physical activity and have positive 

improvement in the health and wellbeing of residents in Merthyr Tydfil.

Key Indicators
March 2016
Merthyr Tydfil

March 2017
Merthyr Tydfil

Children who are Hooked on Sport 40.1% 56.0 %2

- Boys 43.6% 56.0 %2

- Girls 36.0% 56.0 %2

Adults who are Hooked on Sport 38.7% 41.0 %
- Men 45.6% 51.0 %
- Women 32.3% 36.0 %

Children (year 11) who can swim 79.0% 81.0 %
Adults reported as being overweight or obese Reduce Reduce
Visits to leisure centres per 1000 population 9,000 9,000
Free public swims by those aged 60 and over 1,300 1,100

- Male 1,300 1,100
- Female 1,300 1,100

Free public swims by those aged 16 and under 1,600 556
- Boys 1,600 556
- Girls 1,600 556

5.2. The targets for free swimming for those aged 16 and under has been reduced due to 
the change of emphasis by Welsh Government who wish to focus resources on 
structured swimming lessons and addressing inequalities.  This has meant that the 
number of hours the pools will open for free swimming for children aged 16 and under 
has been reduced to 1 hour per pool per day during school holidays (i.e. 14 hours per 
week).  Previously, the pools were available for free swimming all day during school 
holidays (i.e. 116.5 hours per week).

2 October 2017

Page 24



6. WHERE WE ARE NOW

Reference to Measures
(Full details in Appendix I)

Key Indicators
March 2017
Merthyr Tydfil

March 2017
Wales

Children who are Hooked on Sport3 48.1 % rank 13 48.0 %
- Boys 48.4 % rank 18 51.5 %
- Girls 47.7 % rank 5 44.4 %

Adults who are Hooked on Sport4 36.2 % rank 20 40.5 %
- Men 50.7 % rank 5 46.3 %
- Women 22.5 % rank 22 35.1 %

Children (year 11) who can swim
Adults reported as being overweight or obese5 n/a n/a n/a
Visits to leisure centres per 1000 population n/a n/a n/a
Free public swims by those aged 60 and over

- Male n/a n/a n/a
- Female n/a n/a n/a

Free public swims by those aged 16 and under
- Boys n/a n/a n/a
- Girls n/a n/a n/a

Active lifestyles
6.1. In Merthyr Tydfil, outcomes are adequate because there has been an overall 

improvement in people who are hooked on sport.  There was significant improvement to 
the children (boys and girls) who are hooked on sport and a slight improvement to the 
adults who are hooked on sport; however, there was a significant decline in the 
proportion of women who are hooked on sport.

6.2. When we look at our performance against our ambition by adults and by children there 
is a noticeable difference.  The measures we use to understand performance of children 
are in line or better than our ambition; however, the opposite is true for adults where the 
measures are below our ambition with the single exception of men who are hooked on 
sport.

3 School Sport Survey 2015, released 13 October 2015
4 Active Adults Survey 2014, released 15 February 2016
5 The National Survey will restart in 2016/17 covering a wider range of topics.

Page 25



7. HOW DID WE GET HERE

Reference to Initiatives
(Full details in Appendix II)

7.1. n/a

Initiatives completed
7.2. Deliver the Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan 2017

a) Community Sports
b) Addressing inequalities
c) Young ambassadors

7.3. Disability Sport Wales Insport Silver Standard

Lessons learnt
7.4. There has been significant learning on the analysis and use of the School Sport Survey 

data, identifying the need to target approaches to tackle the gender gap.  The result is 
interventions such as M Girls, in Cyfarthfa and Afon Taf High Schools.

7.5. The Active Merthyr Tydfil team are prioritising resources more effectively to focus on 
interventions that will make the biggest difference to sports participation.  This work is 
long-term, transforming children into adults who have the skills, confidence and passion 
to take part in sport for life.

7.6. The service needs to be able to provide a clear position on the contribution of the local 
authority to increasing physical activity via participation in sport; explaining and 
promoting how sport can support other agencies deliver their outcomes and priorities.

8. WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

New initiatives
8.1. n/a

9. THE WELLBEING DUTY (SS&WB ACT AND WFG ACT)
9.1. The Social Services and Wellbeing (SSWB) Act became law in Wales on 01 May 2014, 

which changes the way we assess people's needs and the way we deliver services to 
those people, where they will have a stronger voice to decide what care and support 
they receive.

9.2. The Wellbeing of Future Generations (WFG) Act became law in Wales on 29 April 2015, 
which is about improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of 
Wales.

Page 26



Preparation for the Wellbeing Duty
9.3. Long term and prevention: the work currently in development by the sports 

development team involves working with children as young as 12 months.  This work 
takes place in traditional settings like leisure centre and non-traditional settings such as 
libraries and pre-school provision.  The work in the non-traditional settings involves 
developing the physical literacy approach of providing the children with fundamental 
movement skills around running, jumping, catching, throwing etc.  The aim is to build 
confidence and social abilities.

9.4. The Sports Development Team aims to build capacity within providers to ensure 
consistent delivery of the physical literacy approach across Merthyr Tydfil.  This involves 
working with schools.  The support to schools includes training and mentoring to 
develop capacity and a consistent pathway through the physical literacy journey, from 
nursery through to primary schools.

9.5. The aim of the Sports Development Team is to get every child "Hooked on Sport" for 
life.  The most important element is "for life", which includes their journey through to 
adulthood, maintaining healthy levels of physical activity resulting in a rich sport 
environment, skilled and confident sporting community and a healthy and active 
population.

9.6. Collaboration: delivery of the Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan includes partners from Sport 
Wales, Education, Leisure Trust, Youth Service and Public Health Wales.  The Sports 
Development Team works in collaboration with Sport RCT to improve participation rates 
across the Cwm Taf region.  This work just beginning with Merthyr Tydfil and RCT 
submitting a joint plan to deliver the Sport Wales investment across the region.

9.7. Involvement: Work has taken place in the last 6 months to start reversing the women's 
participation figures, with a campaign called Merthyr Girls Can as referred to above.

LISA CURTIS-JONES
CHIEF OFFICER: IMPROVING WELLBEING

COUNCILLOR LINDA MATTHEWS
PORTFOLIO: SOCIAL SERVICES

EVIDENCE
Title of Document(s)

 Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Document 2015/16
 Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Document 2016/17
 Sport Wales Annual Report 2015/16
 WAO Improvement Assessment 2015/16 (Waste and Active Lifestyles)
 School Sports Survey
 Active Adults Survey
 Scrutiny June 2016 - Performance Report

Page 27

http://sport.wales/research--policy/surveys-and-statistics/statistics.aspx
http://sport.wales/research--policy/surveys-and-statistics/statistics.aspx
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s33066/Performance%20Report%20-%20Active%20Lifestyles.pdf


Does the report contain any issues that may 
affect the Council’s Constitution? NO

Page 28



Appendix I Data

TITLE The percentage of children who are Hooked on Sport

Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT All 32.5 48.1 56.0

MT Boys 37.1 48.4 56.0

MT Girls 27.7 47.7 56.0

Wales All 40.1 48.0 5

Wales Boys 44.0 51.5 1

Wales Girls 36.0 44.4 10

TITLE The percentage of adults who are Hooked on Sport

Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT All 35.9 36.2 41.0

MT Male 44.6 50.7 51.0

MT Female 27.7 22.5 35.0

Wales All 38.8 40.5 14

Wales Male 45.6 46.3 3

Wales Female 32.3 35.1 15

TITLE The number of visits to local authority sport and leisure centres during the year 
per 1,000 population where the visitor will be participating in physical activity

Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT 9,816 9,459 9,245 8,594 9,000 8

Wales 8,856 8,954 8,662 8,409

(960) (505) (583) (185) ()

Page 29



TITLE The rate of participations in free public swims by those aged 60 and over

Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT All 1,249 1,507 1,228 1,055 1,100 3

MT Male 1,132 1,345 1,485 1,317 1,100 3

MT Female 1,349 1,647 1,003 823 1,100 6

Wales All 886 943 847 806

Wales Male 1,013 1,075 968 927

Wales Female 778 829 743 702

TITLE The rate of participations in free public swims by those aged 16 and under

Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT All 1,219 2,235 1,853 1,703 556 1

MT Boys 1,162 2,122 1,759 1,665 556 1

MT Girls 1,280 2,352 1,954 1,743 556 1

Wales All 709 681 504 377

Wales Boys 697 671 486 362

Wales Girls 723 691 522 393

TITLE The percentage of children who can swim

Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT 72.0 77.2 72.0 79.0 81.0 9

Wales

() () () () ()

Page 30



TITLE The percentage of adults reported as being overweight or obese (age-
standardised)

Annual Performance Data Annual Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17

MT 65.2 64.7 63.0 Reduce

Wales 50.0 49.0 48.0

(15.2) (15.7) (15.0) () ()

 

Page 31



Appendix II Projects

PROJECTS Apr
2014

Jul
2014

Oct
2014

Jan
2015

Apr
2015

Jul
2015

Oct
2015

Jan
2016

Apr
2016

Jul
2016

Oct
2016

Jan
2017

Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan 2016 8.1

(a) Community Sports 8.2

(b) Addressing inequalities 8.3

(c) Young ambassadors 8.4

Insport Silver Standard 8.5

Back

PROJECT (B) Deliver the Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan 2017

PROJECT MANAGER Sports Development Manager

DESCRIPTION The Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan is a partnership agreement with Sport 
Wales.  The aim is to encourage residents to become physically active 
at least three times per week.  The Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan is a 
project that includes the on-going delivery of:
 The national Free Swim Initiative
 Play to learn
 Dragon Multi-Skills & Sport
 5 x 60 programmes
In addition, the delivery of this project will continue to develop core 
sports and clubs and increase awareness of inequality in sports 
participation and by bridging the current identified gaps in female 
participation in sport via initiatives such as:
 M Girls
 Us Girls

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) The sports programmes within the Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan seek to get 
more people actively participating in sport and exercise.  This supports 
the outcome that people in Merthyr Tydfil will be physically active and 
as a result have improved health by providing a variety of sport and 
physical activity opportunities for all ages from grass roots to elite sport.

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

The 2016/17 Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan is completed and has been 
delivered as set out in the document. 2016/17 has seen mixed results in 

Page 32



terms of success. Programs such as M Girls has been very successful 
this year seeing the development of community based sessions in 
addition to the school based sessions support the transition of young 
women into main stream community physical activity opportunities.
On the other hand the Welsh Government Free Swimming Program 
delivered by the Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust as failed to achieve most of 
its set targets.

Back

PROJECT (C) (a) Community Sports

PROJECT MANAGER Sports Development Manager

DESCRIPTION This element of the Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan is the development of 
community sport sessions, which has a focus on increasing participation 
in under-represented areas to target where help will have greatest 
impact.  This will also focus on fundamental movement skills for primary 
schools pupils in the Afon Taf cluster.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) The expected benefits include:
 Improvements in the capacity of clubs and other community 

organisation to deliver sport
 A skilled workforce 
 Engagement from all areas of the community

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

The 2016/17 Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan is completed and has been 
delivered as set out in the document. 2016/17 has seen mixed results in 
terms of success. The Active Merthyr Tydfil Team have work during 
2016/17:

 Worked with the Merthyr Tydfil Football League and their clubs 
to develop and support a sustainable model for Football in the 
County Borough. The work has been around club structures, 
financial management and developing funding opportunities and 
longer term planning.

 Upskilling opportunities have been offered in different forms to 
individuals and organisations across the County Borough 
including :

o Non-traditional sporting organisions such as Merthyr 
Tydfil Scouts have been provided with Community 
Sports Leaders training to improve and support physical 
activity delivery.

o Safeguarding and First Aid have been provided to 

Page 33



support clubs and individuals in these areas.
 During the year there has been a raft of work around the 

equities agenda including working with the Community First 
teams, targeted Free Swimming commissioning and free of 
charge and heavily subsidised programs to develop an interest 
in and the confidence and fundamental movement skills to take 
parting and enjoy sport and physical activity for life.  

Back

PROJECT (D) (b) Addressing inequalities

PROJECT MANAGER Sports Development Manager

DESCRIPTION This element of the Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan is delivery of support and 
awareness raising sessions to tackle inequality in sports participation by 
helping remove barriers to participation.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) Sport in Merthyr Tydfil will become inclusive, with schools, community 
clubs and other sports organisations increasing their awareness of 
equality issues and adjusting sporting opportunities to create sessions 
open to all.

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

The main thrust of the work in 2016/17 has been around the barriers to 
access for people with a disability and those living in poverty.

2016/17 as seen the continuation of the work to ensure the County 
Borough is A place where people with a disability are able to access the 
right opportunities. 

The Active Merthyr Tydfil Team as supported this via providing 
 clear referral routes 
 training and advice 
 promotion of opportunities

In terms poverty the team have supported work around the Free 
Swimming imitative  and the work with Community First clusters.

Page 34



Back

PROJECT (E) (c) Young Ambassadors

PROJECT MANAGER Sports Development Manager

DESCRIPTION This element of the Active Merthyr Tydfil plan aims to support young 
people develop their leadership and organisation skills to enable them 
to create opportunities and deliver sport sessions, which contributes 
towards the development of a skilled and passionate workforce 
(including sports leaders and volunteers).

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) The short-term benefit from this work will include the provision of a 
skilled workforce for schools to deliver physical activity sessions in 
lunchtime sessions.
The long-term benefits are the development of the next generation of 
coaches and club volunteers that have the skills, confidence and 
enthusiasm to deliver the “Hooked on Sport” for life agenda.

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

The 2016/17 Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan is completed and has been 
delivered as set out in the document.

In the plan it was set a target for the engagement of 12 schools and 72 
young leaders/Ambassadors across the borough. 

 Young Leaders
o Program taken up in 8 out of 22 Primary Schools
o 50 Young Leaders engaged and deployed. 

 Young Ambassadors
o Program taken up in 2 out of 4 High Schools and at 

The College
o 18 Young Ambassadors engaged and deployed. 

Page 35



Back

PROJECT (F) Achievement of Disability Sport Wales Insport Silver Standard

PROJECT MANAGER Sports Development Manager

DESCRIPTION The successful attainment of the Insport Silver standard will ensure the 
Council, and its key partners, place service users at the centre of the 
development of sport and physical activity opportunities for disabled 
people in Merthyr Tydfil and increase their participation in activities.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) The council and our key partners will be inclusive in our approaches to 
sport.

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2017

PROJECT UPDATE 31 March 2017

On 22nd February 2017 Gareth Chapman Chief Executive, Kerry 
O’Donovan Equalities Manager and Dan Bufton Disability Sports 
Development Officer attended the Insport Silver panel as part of the 
application process.  Further to this the Council was awarded the 
Insport Silver Award 1 of only 5 councils in Wales to achieve this to 
date. This demonstrates the Councils commitment to providing and 
supporting a sporting and physical activity landscape that’s accessible 
by all.

Page 36


	Agenda
	3 Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board Annual Report 2016-17
	4 Performance Report - Corporate Plan - Priority Area 3 Meeting the needs of vulnerable children
	5 Performance Report - Corporate Plan - Priority Area 4 Active Lifestyles

